A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER/DECISION BELOW 

Raymond Jordan requests this Court grant review pursuant to RAP 

13.4 ofthe unpublished decision of the Court of Appeals in State v. Jordan, 

No. 72892-0-I, filed May 4, 2015. A copy of the opinion is attached as 

Appendix A.

B. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

An accused person is entitled to have the jury instructed regarding 

the lawful use of force when there is any evidence the accused had a 

reasonable belief he was about to be injured and the force used was no 

more than necessary. Here, appellant woke to find himself being held 

down by paramedics and firefighters. Appellant resisted by swinging his 

fists, kicking, yelling at them to get off, and swearing at them. Eventually, 

police arrived and subdued him by punching him twice in the face. 

Appellant was taken to the hospital and no one else was injured. Did the 

court err in refusing to instruct the jury on self-defense as to the counts of 

assault against the paramedics and firefighter? 

C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Jordan awoke on the floor of the men's restroom of the Yakima 

Public Library after emergency medical technicians (EMTs) applied 

"painful stimuli." RP 79-80. He found he was being held by the head 

without his consent. RP 122. He began punching and kicking, and when 



EMTs and a firefighter tried to explain, he said, "Get the fuck off." RP 

81, 83. 

One of the paramedics testified that, if they had backed off when 

Jordan woke up, it was possible there would have been no "combat." RP 

97. One of the firefighters testified it was apparent to him that Jordan did 

not want their help and was trying to get away. RP 140. Both EMTs 

understood from Jordan's conduct and statements that he wanted them to 

stop what they were doing to him. RP 97, 128. However, because he 

appeared incapacitated, they substituted their judgment for his and 

administered a sedative by injection. RP 93, 99. 

Police officers arrived approximately six minutes after the EMTs 

and firefighters. RP 84, 86. Jordan continued to struggle by attempting to 

punch, kick, and bite. RP 87. Police eventually subdued Jordan by 

punching him twice in the face. RP 87-88. 

Jordan was taken directly to the hospital because of his injuries. RP 

68. No one else was injured. RP 172, 181-82. Jordan was convicted offive 

counts of third-degree assault, three against the EMTs and the firefighter, 

and two against the police officers. CP 5-6, 35-39. The trial court refused 

Jordan's request for jury instructions on self-defense/lawful use of force, 

ruling that the limited right to refuse unwanted medical treatment did not 

include the right to use force. RP 201; CP 8. 
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On appeal, Jordan argued the trial court erred in refusing his 

request for self-defense instructions for the three counts of assault 

pertaining to the EMTs and the firefighter. Brief of Appellant at 14; Reply 

Brief of Appellant at 5. The Court of Appeals affirmed Jordan's 

convictions, holding that he did not present evidence of the subjective fear 

required for instructions on self-defense. Slip op. at 6-7. The Court of 

Appeals also appears to have applied the heightened standard for self-

defense when used against police officers. Slip op. at 7. 

On July 2, 2015, the Court of Appeals denied Jordan's motion to 

reconsider. Jordan now asks this Court to grant review. 

D. REASONS WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED AND 
ARGUMENT 

THIS COURT SHOULD GRANT 
DETERNIT.NE WHETHER THOSE 

REVIEW TO 
RESISTING 
MAY USE UNWANTED MEDICAL TREATMENT 

LIMITED FORCE TO DO SO. 

"[U]nwanted contact, even if helpful m intent, can constitute 

assault." State v. Koch, 157 Wn. App. 20, 34-35, 237 P.3d 287 (2010) 

(citing State v. Elmi, 166 Wn.2d 209, 215-16, 207 P.3d 439 (2009)). A 

person is entitled to use force in defense to prevent "any assault," 

regardless of whether the assault actually threatens great bodily harm. 

State v. Kyllo, 166 Wn.2d 856, 866, 215 P.3d 177 (2009). The jury must 

be instructed on self-defense whenever there is "some evidence" that the 
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person may have acted out of reasonable fear. State v. McCreven, 170 

Wn. App. 444, 462-63, 284 P.3d 793 (2012); State v. Rodriguez, 121 Wn. 

App. 180, 185, 87 P.3d 1201 (2004); State v. Miller, 89 Wn. App. 364, 

367-68,949 P.2d 821 (1997). A requested jury instruction on self-defense 

must be given unless "the defense theory is completely unsupported by 

evidence." State v. George, 161 Wn. App. 86, 100, 249 P.3d 202 (2011). 

It was clear to the EMTs and firefighters that Jordan did not want 

their assistance and considered their treatment of him offensive or 

harmful. RP 97, 128, 140. The State conceded there was some testimony 

Jordan was trying to refuse the medical treatment that was being 

administered to him. Brief of Respondent at 17. That is all that is 

required to meet his burden of production for instructions on self-defense. 

See Miller, 89 Wn. App. at 367-68 (Self defense instructions required 

when a defendant produces "some evidence" demonstrating self-defense). 

Nevertheless, the court denied the requested instructions and the Court of 

Appeals affirmed. RP 201; Slip op. at 7. 

Review is warranted because three aspects of the Court of Appeals' 

analysis are in conflict with prior decisions by the Court of Appeals and this 

Court. RAP 13.4(b)(l), (2). First, the court focused on the reasonableness 

of the EMTs' (i.e., the victims') conduct, despite State v. Graves, 97 Wn. 

App. 55, 982 P.2d 627 (1999), which indicates the reasonableness of the 
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victim's conduct is immaterial to whether there is evidence the defendant 

reasonably and actually feared harm. Second, the court applied a narrow 

focus to only one part of the interaction. See Slip op. at 6 (focusing lack of 

evidence of fear before the "first alleged incident of assault"). This rationale 

conflicts with case law such as Rodriguez, 121 Wn. App. at 185, holding 

that, in determining whether to grant self-defense instructions, courts must 

consider all the surrounding facts and circumstances. Third, the court 

generally failed to view the facts and circumstances in the light most 

favorable to Jordan, as required by numerous cases such as George, 161 Wn. 

App. at 95-96. 

Finally, review should be granted for a fourth reason: the Court of 

Appeals appeared to apply the heightened standard for acting in self-defense 

against a police officer to this case involving EMTs and a firefighter. Slip 

op. at 6-7. Whether the EMTs and firefighter are akin to police officers 

effecting a lawful arrest for purposes of self-defense appears to be a question 

of first impression and implicates a substantial public interest. RAP 13.4 

(b)(4). 

a. Because a Person Is Entitled to Act on Appearances, 
the Victim's Reasonableness Is Immaterial to 
Whether There Is Some Evidence of Self-Defense. 

Self-defense instructions are warranted when there is evidence of a 

'"subjective, reasonable belief of imminent harm from the victim.'" 
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Rodriguez, 121 Wn. App. at 185 (quoting State v. LeFaber, 128 Wn.2d 

896, 899, 913 P.2d 369 (1996)). Once self-defense is raised, the question 

is whether the defendant's act was reasonable under the circumstances as 

they appeared to him. Id. Whether the victim's original use of force was 

also reasonable is "a completely separate inquiry from whether the 

[defender] was initially entitled to raise the claim of self-defense." 

Graves, 97 Wn. App. at 62-63 (emphasis added). 

In Graves, the State argued there was insufficient evidence to 

instruct on self-defense because the defendant's father used reasonable 

force to discipline him. Id. at 62. But the court rejected this argument, 

declaring, "[T]he question of whether the father's own use of force was 

reasonable is a completely separate inquiry from whether the child was 

initially entitled to raise the claim of self-defense." Id. at 62-63. By 

analogy to Graves, whether the EMTs and firefighters were acting 

reasonably in their attempt to provide medical care is an entirely separate 

question from whether Jordan presented sufficient evidence he was acting 

in self-defense. In short, the reasonableness of the EMT' s conduct is 

immaterial. The Court of Appeals' reliance on the reasonableness of the 

EMTs and firefighters, see slip op. at 6-7, is in conflict with Graves. 

In justifying the EMTs and firefighters' conduct, the Court of 

Appeals also relied on RCW 70.96A.120(2). Slip op. at 6. But the 
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statute is also irrelevant. Under that statute, a peace officer is pennitted to 

take an intoxicated and incapacitated person into custody. A peace officer 

is defined as "a law enforcement official of a public agency or 

governmental unit, and includes persons specifically given peace officer 

powers by any state law, local ordinance, or judicial order of 

appointment." RCW 70.96A.020(22). 

EMTs and firefighters are not law enforcement officials and are, 

therefore, not peace officers. They were not statutorily entitled to take 

Jordan into custody. And even assuming the EMTs were designated by 

the county as custodians of intoxicated and incapacitated persons, the 

statute protects the custodian from civil or criminal liability. RCW 

70.96A.120. It does not elevate them to the level of police officers 

effectuating a lawful arrest or remove an individual's right to self-defense. 

Even if the statute applied to the EMTs and firefighters, it would 

still be irrelevant to the analysis in the opinion. The Court of Appeals' 

opinion holds there was no evidence of Jordan's subjective fear. Slip op. 

at 6-7. Whether the EMTs or the police officers had lawful authority to 

take him into custody under the statute has no bearing on his subjective 

fear. 

7 



It is well within the realm of possibility that both the EMTs' 

conduct was reasonable and that Jordan reasonably feared their unwanted 

physical contact and restraint. This was a dilemma the jury should have 

been asked to resolve. By focusing on the statutory authority for and 

reasonableness of taking Jordan into custody, the opinion in this case 

conflicts with Graves, 97 Wn. App 55, and review should be granted 

under RAP 13.4(b)(2). 

b. The Court of Appeals Failed to Consider All the 
Surrounding Facts and Circumstances in Determining 
Whether Self-Defense Instruction Was Warranted. 

In deciding whether self-defense instructions are warranted, courts 

must look at "'all the surrounding facts and circumstances"' from the 

accused person's perspective. Rodriguez, 121 Wn. App. at 185 (quoting 

LeFaber, 128 Wn.2d at 900). Yet the Court of Appeals opinion creates an 

artificial temporal distinction focusing solely on the time before Jordan 

threw the first punch, rather than on the circumstances as a whole. Slip 

op. at 6. This Court should grant review because the narrow temporal 

focus is not warranted for several reasons and is in direct conflict with 

Rodriguez. RAP 13.4(b)(2). 

This entire incident took place over only a few minutes. From the 

moment the EMTs first encountered Jordan until they administered the 

injection was three minutes. RP 91-93. Thus, it is reasonable to use 
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statements Jordan made only" moments later ("get the fuck off') to infer 

his earlier mindset when he threw the first punch. This reasonable 

inference is some evidence of fear that warranted instruction on self-

defense. 

In holding there was no evidence of subjective fear, the Court of 

Appeals also disregarded the EMTs' own statements. Both EMTs 

understood from Jordan's conduct and statements that he wanted them to 

stop what they were doing to him. RP 97, 128. In other words, his words 

and actions were evidence from which they inferred he deemed their 

contact to be offensive. Review is warranted because the Court of 

Appeals opinion disregards this evidence in contravention of Rodriguez' 

and LeFaber's mandate to consider all the surrounding facts and 

circumstances. 128 Wn.2d at 900; 121 Wn. App. at 185; RAP 13.4(b)(l), 

(2). 

c. The Court of Appeals Failed to View the Facts in the 
Light Most Favorable to Jordan. 

Review should be granted under RAP 13 .4(b )(2) because the Court 

of Appeals opinion is in conflict with George, 161 Wn. App. at 95-96 and 

other cases requiring that facts supporting a self-defense instruction be 

viewed in the light most favorable to the defendant. RAP 13 .4(b )(2). 
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The State conceded there was some testimony that Jordan was 

trying to refuse the medical treatment that was being administered to him. 

Brief of Respondent at 17. The EMTs and firefighter understood this to be 

the case. Yet they continued to impose unwanted physical contact on 

Jordan. That unwanted physical contact constituted assault. Koch, 157 

Wn. App. at 20. A person being assaulted is entitled to use reasonable 

force in self-defense. Kyllo, 166 Wn.2d at 866. He is also entitled to act 

on appearances, even if he later turns out to be mistaken. Rodriguez, 121 

Wn. App. at 185. 

It should go without saying that aggression can be a sign of fear. 

Yet the Court of Appeals categorically rejected this inference holding that 

Jordan's "swinging and kicking alone is not evidence of subjective fear

only of unexplained aggression." Slip op. at 6. 

It is apparent that the EMTs and firefighter were not actually 

attempting to harm Jordan. But the facts must be viewed not from their 

perspective, or ours, but from Jordan's. Rodriguez, 121 Wn. App. at 185. 

Would a reasonable person physically resist upon awaking from a drunken 

stupor to find him or herself being physically restrained? Would a 

reasonable person try to escape by throwing a punch or kicking when it is 

apparent that his wishes are being disregarded and medical treatment 

imposed by force? In terms of the amount of force, Jordan's force in 

10 



response to unwanted, offensive contact was actually less than necessary 

to prevent the assault. 

Viewed in the light most favorable to Jordan, there was at least 

some evidence he used reasonable force to prevent what he reasonably 

perceived as imminent harmful or offensive contact. That is all that is 

required to meet his burden of production. See Miller, 89 Wn. App. at 

367-68 (Self defense instructions required when a defendant produces 

"some evidence" demonstrating self-defense). Review should be granted 

under RAP 13.4(b)(2) because the Court of Appeals failed to view the 

facts in the light most favorable to Jordan, as required by George, 161 Wn. 

App. at 95-96. 

d. The Heightened Standard for Police Officers 
Making a Lawful Arrest Should Not Apply to 
Medical Professionals Attempting to Provide 
Unwanted Treatment. 

In general, to find self-defense, a subjective reasonable belief that 

harm is imminent is sufficient; the jury need not find actual imminent 

harm. Rodriguez, 121 Wn. App. at 185. However, a heightened standard 

applies when the person against whom force is used is a police officer. 

State v. Bradley, 141 Wn.2d 731, 737-38, 10 P.3d 358 (2000). This 

heightened standard also applies when force is used against corrections 

officers working in a prison because "the circumstances of persons using 
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force in self-defense against correctional officers are analogous to the 

situation of persons resisting arrest." Id. at 733. 

Persons under arrest or confined in pnson have significant 

limitations on their personal liberty. See, e.g., Wolffv. McDonnell, 418 

U.S. 539, 555, 94 S. Ct. 2963, 2974, 41 L. Ed. 2d 935 (1974) ("Lawful 

imprisonment necessarily makes unavailable many rights and privileges of 

the ordinary citizen, a 'retraction justified by the considerations underlying 

our penal system.'") (quoting Price v. Johnston, 334 U.S. 266, 285, 68 S. 

Ct. 1049, 1060, 92 L. Ed. 1356 (1948)). Police and correctional officers 

are authorized by law to use force, sometimes lethal force, in order to 

enforce those limitations. Bradley, 141 Wn. App. at 737-38. Imprisoned 

or arrested persons simply do not have a right to refuse many intrusions 

into their privacy or liberty, and the risk of escalation of violence if they 

do so is enormous. Id. The same is not true of persons receiving 

unwanted medical treatment. 

But the Court of Appeals opinion appears to extend this principle 

to medical professionals such as the EMTs and firefighter in this case. 

Slip op. at 5, 7. No Washington court has previously so held, and this 

question is one of substantial public interest. This Court should grant 

review under RAP 13.4(b)(4) and hold that the heightened standard for 
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self-defense against those charged with law enforcement does not extend 

to those charged with providing emergency medical care. 

E. CONCLUSION 

The Court of Appeals opinion conflicts with decisions of this Court 

and the Court of Appeals and presents significant questions of public 

interest. Jordan therefore requests this Court grant review under RAP 13.4 

(b)(1), (2), and (4).