RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON Sep 11, 2015, 4:07 pm BY RONALD R. CARPENTER CLERK

NO. 92072-9

E RECEIVED B

THE SUPREME COURT OF

OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON, Plaintiff/Respondent v.

RAYMOND EDWARD JORDAN, Appellant

#### ANSWER TO PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW BY YAKIMA COUNTY

David B. Trefry WSBA #16050 Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney P.O. Box 4846 Spokane, WA 99220

JOSEPH A. BRUSIC Yakima County Prosecuting Attorney 128 N. 2d St. Rm. 329 Yakima, WA 98901-2621



FILED AS ATTACHMENT TO EMAIL

##

#### A. INTRODUCTION

Petitioner Jordan was convicted of five counts of Assault in the Third degree. The charges are based on the defendant's assaultive acts upon EMT's, firemen and police officers who were attempting to render him aid after he was found unconscious, face down in a puddle of his own vomit, in a handicap accessible toilet stall in a branch of the public library in Yakima County. Jordan, without explanation only challenged the convictions in counts I, II and III. These counts pertain to two EMT's and a firefighter. The two counts that were not challenged pertain to the two police officers who were assaulted. (Appellant's Opening brief at 13, 14) He now seeks review of the Court of Appeals decision under RAP 13.4(d)(1), (2), and (4)

The issue raised herein was addressed by the trial court on more than one occasion and by a panel of judges in Division I of the Court of Appeals on two occasions; the initial appeal wherein that court upheld the actions of the trial court and once again after Petitioner filed a motion for reconsideration which was denied. (This appeal was transferred to Division I of the Court of Appeals by Division III.)

The State's opening brief set out the trial court's ruling:

THE COURT: Okay. I agree with the State on this point. I think the right to refuse does not include the right to use physical force, at least the hitting, the biting and kicking, and it's obviously also a limited right to refuse. I think the EMT probably testified accurately that when a person's mental state is such that they have an obligation, a legal obligation, to substitute their own judgment for a person who isn't able to protect themselves with their decisions, so I agree with the State. The instruction will not be given. (Emphasis mine.)

The State's before the trial court shows that the State believed

there was insufficient evidence to support the claim of self-defense. The

State's argument in part:

"To raise a claim of self defense the defendant must first offer credible evidence tending to prove self defense.... Your Honor, that doesn't mean the defendant has to get up and testify it was in self defense. What the law states is there need only be some evidence admitted in the case from whatever source which tends to prove the defendant acted in self defense. Now -- and that's -that's the, tends to prove, and I think we -- that's where the State has an issue, which tends to prove that the defendant acted in self defense. And we'll get some more -- a defendant must produce evidence showing that he or she had a good faith belief in the necessity of force and that the belief was objectively reasonable. ... I mean, if the jury's thinking, well, you have the right to refuse and that means that you can punch somebody to refuse, that's not reasonable and that is not the law and none of the evidence that has come out so far in the State's position as elicited by defense and we were all here listening to the cross-examination, it was, well, he had the right to refuse. (RP 200-1)

(Respondent's Brief at 3-4)

The Court of Appeals began it ruling by stating "Because the

record contains no evidence sufficient to entitle Jordan to a self-defense

instruction, the trial court did not err when it failed to give this instruction.

We affirm." The court concluded it opinion as follows; "Because the

record shows no evidence of the subjective element of self-defense, the

trial court did not err when it declined to give a self-defense instruction.

We affirm." (Slip opinion at 1, 7)

#### **B. ISSUE PRESENTED BY PETITION**

Jordan petitions this court requesting review of the decision of the

Court of Appeals Division I which upheld the trial court's denial of

Jordan's request for instruct the jury as to the defense of self-defense.

Petitioners alleges;

1. An accused person is entitled to have the jury instructed regarding the lawful use of force when there is any evidence the accused had a reasonable belief he was about to be injured and the force used was no more than necessary.

He further alleges "[t]his court should grant review to determine whether those resisting unwanted medical treatment my use limited force to do so.

#### ANSWER TO ISSUES PRESENTED BY PETITION

 There is no legal basis for this court to accept review. The rule of law presented in this case does not conflict with any prior decisions of this or any court of appeal in this state. RAP 13.4(b)(1), (2) as alleged by Petitioner

#### C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The facts were set forth in the brief of appellant, the respondent's

brief and within the ruling of the Court of Appeals. The manner they are

set forth in Jordan's petition for review makes the evidence appear as if it was ascertained from the defendant and takes artistic liberty with the actual evidence.

There was clearly is not that "Jordan awoke" after the painful stimuli, in fact the EMT states the opposite reaction;

A I pinched his trapezius muscle to see if I could get any Painful stimuli to wake him up possibly.Q How hard did you squeeze?A Hard enough to wake someone up.

Q Okay, and then was there any response? A No, sir.

Jordan did not awake until later when the EMT's were starting to evaluate Jordan's condition. They were rolling their patient over to "examine his airway and breathing and circulation." It was at that time that Jordan began to swing and kick at these two fully uniformed EMT's who were trying to render aid. (RP 79-80)

There is no testimony from the Petitioner so it would be impossible to state factually that "He found he was being held by the head without his consent." (Petition at 1) There is absolutely nothing in the record that would support that statement, unless yelling "fuck you and get the fuck off of me" is going to be interpreted by this court or any court as Petitioner "finding he was being held without his consent."

The State shall rely on facts set forth in the previous briefing, the

opinion of the Court of Appeals and as need will set forth specific areas of the facts in the argument section below and Appendix.

D. ARGUMENT

Jordan argues that his petition falls within RAP 13.4(b)(1) (2) and (4). The ruling by Division I of the Court of Appeals does not fall within any section of RAP 13.4(b) the Court of Appeals correctly relied upon settled case law the court cited to;

<u>State v. Read</u>, 147 Wn.2d 238, 243, 53 P.3d 26 (2002), <u>State v. George</u>. 161 Wn. App. 86, 95, 249 P.3d 202 (2011), <u>State v. Harvill</u>, 169 Wn.2d 254, 259, 234 P.3d 1166 (2010), <u>State v. McCreven</u>, 170 Wn. App. 444, 462-63, 284 P.3d 793 (2012), RCW 9A.16.020(3); <u>State v. Werner</u>, 170 Wn.2d 333, 337, 241 P.3d 410 (2010); <u>State v. LB</u>, 132 Wn. App. 948, 953, 135 P.3d 508 (2006), <u>State v. Mierz</u>, 127 Wn.2d 460, 476, 901 P.2d 286 (1995), <u>State v. Riley</u>. 137 Wn.2d 904, 909, 976 P.2d 624 (1999), <u>State v. Walker</u>. 136 Wn.2d 767, 773, 966 P.2d 883 (1998).

These cases set out the standard of law in this state regarding the use of Jordan's proposed instruction. The ruling of the court in this case does not conflict with any of the cases cited or for that matter any other case which addresses this area of the law. Nor is this issue one of great public interest.

Jordan has not met any of the criterion set forth in RAP 13.4(b)

#### 1. Standards of Review.

RAP 13.4(b) Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review;

RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2) - The ruling challenged does not conflict with any ruling by this court or any other division of the Court of Appeals or for that matter any court; RAP13.4(4) nor does the ruling by Division I of the Court of Appeals present an issue of substantial public interest

In its decision the Court of Appeals cited to and relied upon the settled law in this area as set forth above and in the Court's opinion. The State has throughout this appeal argued that the law is set and known.

The area at issue was specific; was there evidence presented to the trial court such that it was required, based on the settled law, to present the jury with Jordan's theory of self-defense. That question was answered in the negative by each and every court that has addressed it. This is a factual case plainly and simply. The decision by the Court of Appeals merely applied existing law to the facts presented during Jordan's trial. As the Court of Appeals stated "[b]ecause the record contains no evidence sufficient to entitle Jordan to a self-defense instruction, the trial court did not err when it failed to give this instruction."

Jordan chose to exercise his right to not testify at his trial, he also presented no witnesses at trial. Therefore his entire theory of self-defense was based upon the sworn testimony the State's witnesses, the EMT's,

6

firefighters and police officers who were summoned by the staff of the public library to render aid to the unconscious person, Jordan, who was lying unresponsive on the floor of a toilet stall in a puddle of his own vomit. Testimony elicited by Jordan's trial attorney established Jordan's condition when first contacted by the EMT's. The EMT's agreed with counsel when asked if "he (Jordan) had the lowest score he could possibly have?" (See Appendix A for a portion of the testimony from the EMT's)

Jordan attempts to use <u>State v. Koch</u>, infra, as a basis for his claim that this fact pattern is one of great public interest. But once again the facts do not support this argument. The facts of this case are not such that this court can or should address the issue proffered by Jordan, that a person who is "refusing" medical treatment has the right to fight the care givers. While there may someday be a factual situation that comes before a court of this state that would allow this court or any court to address that issue this is not that case.

Jordan cites to <u>State v. Koch</u>, 157 Wn.App. 20, 237 P.3d 287 (2010) however <u>Koch</u> does not address an assault by the person to whom aid it being provided, but rather an "assault" by the provider of the aid on a party who does not wish that aid. <u>Koch</u> does not involve public servants who have a duty to render aid to an individual who is in distress. <u>Koch</u> is

7

distinguishable and therefore the opinion rendered in this case in not in conflict with <u>Koch</u>.

Jordan attempts to use a statement in the Respondent's brief to support his allegation that he presented testimony that there was an indication that he was refusing treatment. The problem with this argument is the State was pointing out that the actions and statements of Jordan were not those of a person who was capable, according to these highly trained medical personnel, of making a knowing intelligent decision regarding treatment. The State was not indicating that the statements of the EMT's supported Jordan's theory. Further even if there was a statement or statements, the totality of the facts still rail against the argument that Jordan proffers; that is obscenity laced attack on these EMT's, firemen and police is synonymous with "please sir I do not wish to receive treatment."

The operative section of the testimony referred to by the State is as follows;

- Q You said all he told you was fuck off and get off me?
- A That's correct, sir.
- Q Okay. Is that an indication that he doesn't want treatment?
- A It's not an appropriate response to me to my questions.
- Q Did that communicate to you that he did not want treatment?
- A No.
- Q Do you believe that he wanted your treatment?
- A I believed he needed treatment.

- Q You substituted your judgment for his?
- A That's correct.
- Q Okay. You're allowed to do that if a person is not capable of making intelligent decisions for themselves?
- A Correct.
- Q This was a person who had a Glasgow Coma score of 3, the bottom, when you first met him.
- A That's correct.
- Q And was severely impaired.
- A That's correct.
- Q You believe you had the right to substitute your judgment for his?
- A That's correct.
- Q And that's why you grabbed his trapezius muscle and you gave him a shot.
- A That's correct.
- Q Both rather painful experiences.
- (RP 99)

The facts do not support the giving of the self-defense jury

instruction. This court should deny Jordan's request.

Jordan also claims that the Court of Appeals opinion at 6-7

"appears" to extend the standard applicable to a police officer to both

EMT's and firemen. While the State did raise this in its briefing before

the court of appeals that court clearly did not set forth a new standard for

EMT's. This claim is refuted by the following portion of the ruling;

To justify the **first** alleged incident of assault, Jordan must identify some evidence showing that he had a subjective fear of harm before he acted and the objective reasonableness of this fear. Contrary to Jordan's claim, his swinging and kicking alone is not evidence of subjective fear—only unexplained aggression. By the time Jordan told the EMTs to "f\*\*\* off and "get the f\*\*\* off of me," he had already assaulted the EMTs. Thus, the record contains no evidence showing that Jordan acted with subjective fear of imminent harm when he first assaulted the EMTs.

Because all the <u>remaining assault charges</u> resulted from Jordan's continued struggle against justified restraint after Jordan first assaulted the EMTs, no evidence shows that he ever acted in self-defense. (Slip at page 6) (Emphasis mine.)

The court clearly differentiated between the charges, the discussion of "the remaining charges" can only refer to the two unchallenged counts that are based on Petitioner's assaults on the two police officers. "Jordan does not identify any evidence showing that he feared actual, imminent, serious injury or death as required to entitle him to a self-defense instruction for the <u>remaining</u> charges." (Slip opinion at 7) (Emphasis mine.)

#### E. CONCLUSION

The Court of Appeals did not deviate from establish law. It did differentiated between the initial assaults on the EMT's and the fireman and the later assaults on the two police officers. The court did not impose a new standard nor did it deviate from the law addressing the use of the self-defense instruction. This case is a question of facts and the facts did not and do not support the use of the self-defense instruction.

Jordan states that he should be allowed to use this instruction "[b]ecause a person is entitled to act on appearances" a statement that if true would allow any person to act upon their belief of the "appearance" of

10

another's actions. (Petition at 5) This theory would **appear** to allow an individual to assault another person because the proponent, Jordan, thought that the victims, the EMT's appeared to be assaulting him. Taken to a logical conclusion this would allow any person walking down the street to assault any person whom they believed appeared to be assaulting them or about to assault them or about to provide them care. So a person who was handing you something that you just dropped could be assaulted and the person committing the assault would be allowed the use of self-defense even is the person who was assaulted was a smiling nun in her habit, because according to Jordan's argument he is allowed to act on appearances and "the victim's reasonableness is immaterial." This is absurd. This court should not accept review of the Court of Appeals. Jordan has not established a basis for review under RAP 13.4(b) as required.